

Before & After School Program Brunswick School Department, MSAD75, & RSU 1 Family Handbook 2025-2026

Bath Area Family YMCA 303 Centre St. Bath, Maine 04530 (207) 443-4112 Fax: (207) 443-1079

Kayla Royer, Youth & Family Director, Ext. 39 kayla@bathymca.org

Annie Colaluca, Executive Director of Early Learning & Family Services, Ext. 36 annie@bathymca.org

Jacqueline Stahl, Billing & Receivables Specialist, jacqueline@bathymca.org











TABLE OF CONTENTS

Bath Area Family YMCA Mission	4
Our Philosophy	4
Y Annual Campaign & Scholarship Fund	4
Program Goals	4
Daily Program Philosophy	4
Admission Information	4
Rights for Children in Child Care Facilities	5
Child Staff Ratio	5
Child Occupancy Per Site	5
Staff Qualifications	5
Hours of Operation	5
Daily Schedule	5
Enrollment	6
Enrollment Packet Checklist	6
Confidentiality	6
Holidays/Days Closed	6
Vacation Week Camp/Days off From School/Half Days	6
Items Inappropriate for Y Care	7
Swim Day	7
Y Care Emergency Closure Policy	7
Emergency Relocation	7
Emergency Policy	7
Weather Preparation & Daily Attire	7
Arrival & Pick Up Policies	8
Resolving Parent Issues	8
Mealtime & Nutrition	8
5210 Let's Go!	8
Illness Policy	8
Medication	9
Family Participation & Interaction	9

Essential Eligibility Criteria	9
Behavior Policy	10
Program Discipline Procedures	10
Incident Reports	10
Bully Prevention Policy	10
Reporting Abuse	11
Impairment Policy	11
Tuition Policies	11
Termination Policy	12
Family Surveys	
Student Assessment	12
Registration	12
Tax Form Request	12
Financial Aid	12
Communication	12

Bath Area Family YMCA Mission

The purpose of the Bath Area Family YMCA is to promote the health and well-being of individuals, families, and communities. We offer a broad range of programs and services to our members and the community. These programs and services are designed to nourish mind, body, and spirit; promote life skills; and improve health and wellness. We are driven by the values of caring, honesty, respect, and responsibility. We embrace the diversity of our community. We do not discriminate based on race, creed, national origin, age, gender, sexual orientation, disability, or socio-economic status.

We always strive to provide our services without regard for one's ability to pay for such services.

Our Philosophy

The Bath Area Family YMCA Child Care programs offer opportunities for children to interact in an inclusive, child-directed environment. We focus on learning through the developmental areas of social-emotional, physical, cognitive and language, utilizing "play" as the focal point for all learning. We respect and support children in the acquisition of new skills, believing that children learn at their own pace, developing skills as they build upon gained knowledge.

Families are an integral part of our program. Teachers help to introduce diversity while working with the children and families involved in our programs. Our goal is to create an environment that nurtures, encourages respect, promotes self-esteem and trust. Our hope is that the experiences we offer will promote unique and positive outcomes for the children and families we serve.

Y Annual Campaign & Scholarship Fund

The YMCA is a charitable organization that provides financial aid to any individual that is not able to afford services. The funds for these scholarships are raised thanks to YMCA community volunteers that work with our Annual Campaign, as well as support from the United Way of Mid-Coast Maine. Parent volunteers are always welcome to join the campaign as volunteers. Applications for financial aid are always available at the YMCA Welcome Center or on the Y website at www.bathymca.org.

Program Goals

Our child care program is a safe, caring environment where each child is encouraged to learn new skills, express himself/herself freely and explore the environment. Teachers facilitate independence and self-esteem while modeling and supporting the development of problem-solving skills.

Teachers provide a group environment designed to promote social-emotional, cognitive, physical, and language skills. Using process-oriented activities, children learn risk taking and build self-confidence.

Our day is designed with individual and group activities taking place within the group setting, as well as free and structured playtime. Daily, teachers observe and interact with children attempting to maintain an environment that is stimulating and meets the needs of each child at his/her own level of readiness. Ultimately, in keeping with the purpose and philosophy of the YMCA, we strive to help children develop fully in body, mind, and spirit.

Daily Program Philosophy

We believe that children need time to play. Therefore, the environment in our child care programs will be designed to allow the children to explore and create independently. It is our goal to provide a developmentally appropriate program, which will enhance the healthy growth of your child as an individual. Through observation, Site Directors and Group Leaders will design age appropriate, creative activities that encourage fun.

Admission Information

The YMCA admits families without regard to sex, race, national origin, religion, political beliefs, marital status, or disability.

- Enrollment is limited and structured to provide the most positive experience for the children.
- All our programs are licensed through the State of Maine Child Care Licensing Department

Rights for Children in Child Care Facilities

The Bath Area Family YMCA is dedicated to protecting the rights of children enrolled in its programs. Maine's Department of Human Services provides rules, summarized below, outlining the rights of children enrolled in each child care program. We take the steps necessary to protect these rights.

- Right to freedom from abuse and neglect
- Right to confidentiality
- Right to freedom from harmful actions or practices
- Right to a safe and healthy environment
- Right to be free from discrimination
- Right to consideration and respect
- Right to be informed of services provided by the Child Care Facility
- Right to information regarding the Child Care Facility's deficiencies
- Right to assistance in implementing a service plan developed with community or state agencies.
- Right to a variety of appropriate activities, materials, and equipment; and
- If a child has disabilities, he or she has the right to reasonable modifications and accommodations that do not fundamentally alter but allow the child to participate in the program.

Child Staff Ratio

All programs will follow Maine State Licensing Standards. Regulations for Licensing are as follows:

Age of Child	Number of Staff
5 Years to 12 Years	1 adult to every 13

Child Occupancy Per Site

Site	Occupancy
Kate Furbish	60
Dike Newell	49
Woolwich	49
The Landing Y	60
Bath Y	260

Staff Qualifications

All child care staff members have the appropriate certification and training required by Maine Department of Health and Human Services Licensing and Regulatory Services Division listed in the Rules for the Licensing of Child Care Facilities.

Hours of Operation

Monday–Friday; school year only 6:30AM until School Starts

8

The end of School until 5:30PM

Daily Schedule

AM Care

6:30AM-7:30AM	Structured station games
7:30AM-8:00AM	Outdoor time: weather depending.
7:30AM-9:15AM	If raining or too cold: gym games/board games.

PM Care

3:00PM-4:00PM	Homework/Snack Time
	If students do not have homework, they can read quietly.
4:00PM-5:30PM	Outdoor time: weather depending.
	If raining or too cold: gym games/board games.

Enrollment

Child care is important to us, and we want all parents to feel welcome and safe in all our programs. A period of adjustment is to be expected when a new child joins our group. Enrollment is offered during the school year. If needed, a waiting list will be developed and as openings occur, they will be filled from the list as spots open.

Enrollment Packet Checklist

The following forms are included in the enrollment packet and must be submitted before your child begins our program:

- Emergency Information
- Financial Agreement
- Draft Agreement (optional)
- Payment Policy
- Behavior Policy
- Statement of Understanding
- Wavier Pages: Climbing Wall Waiver, Swimming Permission Form, Field Trip Waiver, Photo Waiver, Peanut & Tree Nut
 Policy, Consent to Speak with School, and Family Handbook Understanding
- Immunizations

Confidentiality

Any information that you share with Bath Area Family YMCA staff will be treated with privacy and respect. Information gathered on forms will be kept in locked files and are available only to approved staff. We need your written permission to share any information with another program or agency. We will also need your written consent to receive any information from another program or agency. All Bath Area Family YMCA staff and volunteers are trained to respect your privacy and to follow YMCA confidentiality policies.

Holidays/Days Closed

Our child care programs will be closed on the following holidays:

- Labor Day
- Indigenous People's Day
- Veteran's Day
- Thanksgiving
- Day after Thanksgiving
- Christmas Eve
- Christmas Day
- New Year's Day
- MLK Jr. Day
- President's Day
- Memorial Day
- Juneteenth

Vacation Week Camp/Days off From School/Half Days

Registration for these days and weeks will be given on a first come first serve basis. Families enrolled in Y Care will be emailed approximately two-weeks in advance to sign-up. Enrollment for vacation weeks, days off from school and half days, <u>require</u> written response. Registration for vacation camp <u>requires</u> that you register for all the days offered to ensure we are serving the greatest number of children and families.

Tuition includes the cost of breakfast, afternoon snack and all field trips. If your child is unable to attend any day they are registered for during vacation camp, the fee does not change.

Questions surrounding any costs or fees should be referred to the Billing & Receivables Specialist.

^{**}Tuition will remain due even during the above holidays unless they fall within a vacation camp.

Items Inappropriate for Y Care

The following items should remain at home: lasers, large amounts of money, toys and games, electronics, and weapons. Please read your school's policy on personal and inappropriate items.

The YMCA reserves the right to add items that are not currently listed, as needed to maintain an appropriate environment.

Swimming

***When applicable.

The Y Care Program may have the opportunity to swim based off pool, staff, and bussing availability.

Guardians will be informed via email about swim days and times if/when the program has them.

Each child should bring his or her swimsuit, a towel, and goggles, if desired. All articles should be clearly labeled with a permanent marker. Please also have your child bring a plastic/waterproof bag for his/her wet articles. Any child with hair long enough to be pulled into a ponytail will be expected to put their hair up during swim time. We follow the State Licensing Requirements for swimming pools. All children will be swim tested prior to swimming, or they will have to wear a life preserver.

Y Care Emergency Closure Policy

- The Bath Area Family YMCA has the discretion to make closure decisions based on safety, conditions of roads, parking lots and sidewalks, as well as staffavailability.
- If the Bath Area Family YMCA closes due to unforeseen circumstances, money is still due until further review of the situation
- If your child's school has a DELAYED START (of any time frame), there will be no AM Y Care. PM Y Care will be held as usual if the school opens after a delayed start.
- If your school is CLOSED, then there is no Y CARE.
- If your school cancels after school activities, but the school is open, then there will be Y Care.
- At this time there will be no "Snow Day Care" at the Bath YMCA on school snow day closures based on the safety and concern of all YMCA staff. Should this policy change, all parents will be notified via email of the changes and program details.
- Any delays or closures at your school will be notified through our text alert system. Guardians can sign up for text alerts through their enrollment packet or emailing the Youth & Family Director.

Emergency Relocation

Kate Furbish Site	Edwards Field/Landing Y
Fisher Mitchell Site	Playground/Forest Line/Bath Y
Woolwich Site	Sport fields/Bath Y
Harpswell Site	Playground/Forest Line/Landing Y
Bath Y	Bath Recreation Center
Landing Y	Brunswick Recreation Center

Emergency Policy

We conduct and complete monthly fire drills and emergency procedures for all staff and children to ensure the safety of everyone involved. Our emergency procedure is posted at each site.

Weather Preparation & Daily Attire

Children should wear clothing appropriate for freedom of movement and active exercise. When snow is on the ground children should wear winter jackets, snow boots, snow pants hat & mittens. State law requires that your child be given access to the outdoors daily, weather permitting.

Arrival & Pick Up Policies

Safety is an important consideration here at the YMCA. Our policy is to know where every child is at all times. Therefore, an adult must accompany his/her child into and out of the Y Care programs daily. A parent/caregiver must be sure to let staff know they are leaving with the child they are picking up. All people dropping off or picking up MUST sign in AND out daily and indicate the time below their signature.

<u>Please note</u>: If the Y Care staff suspect that a parent/guardian is unable to safely transport their child at the time of Y Care pick up, the YMCA will follow the guidelines listed under the Impairment Policy.

Our program closes promptly at 5:30pm.

A late fee of \$2.00 a minute will be charged for a child who remains at the site after 5:30pm.

** We reserve the right to terminate services when a parent is repeatedly late.

Resolving Parent Issues

At any time, a conference or brief meeting with the Youth & Family Director or Site Director may be requested. For programmatic issues, Site Directors are an excellent resource. The Youth & Family Director is available to assist with policy issues as well as support program issues. The Bath Area Family YMCA feels that positive parent-teacher communication is necessary to create the best possible environment for children. All staff are directly supervised by the Youth & Family Director. When you have concerns or questions, we encourage you to communicate them to us in a timely manner.

Mealtime & Nutrition

- All sites are peanut and tree nut FREE!
- Snack is served daily during PM Care and follows USDA Food & Nutrition Standards.
- A menu detailing your child's snack for the week is available attached to the sign in/out sheets.
- We ask you to please leave all candy and soda at home while attending care at the YMCA.

The Y is reimbursed for food/snacks we serve in our programs by the USDA Child and Adult Care Food Program.

The U.S. Department of Agriculture prohibits discrimination against its customers, employees, and applicants for employment on the basis of race, color, national origin, ace, disability, sex, gender identity, religion, reprisal, and where applicable, political beliefs, marital status, familial or parental status, sexual orientation, or protected genetic information in employment or in any program or activity conducted or funded by the Department (Not all prohibited bases will apply to all programs and/or employment activities).

5210 Let's Go!

The Bath Area Family YMCA supports and participates in the 5210 program. The 5210 message (5 or more fruits and vegetables, 2 hours or less of recreational screen time, 1 hour or more of physical activity and 0 sugary drinks, more water and low-fat milk a day) is used consistently across all program areas.

Illness Policy

Illness is an important topic to address in child care. We understand the importance of having a safe place to leave your child, but we must keep the health of the group the top priority. Please try to assist us with reducing the transmission of childhood diseases by noting your child's behavior and checking for signs of illness. We trust that you will follow these simple guidelines:

- A child who is not well enough to participate in all our daily activities, including swimming, gymnastics, and outdoor play, should not attend.
- Children must be without a fever of 101° or greater for 24 hours and/or must be without vomiting and diarrhea for 24 hours before returning to the program. (Vomiting includes two or more episodes in the previous 24 hours.)
- A child who is presenting any of the following symptoms should be kept home and will be sent home if any of these symptoms are noted.
 - A temperature (of 101° or higher)
 - Diarrhea or Vomiting
 - An Unexplained Rash
 - Discharging Eyes or Ears
 - If your child is sent home with conjunctivitis, it is our policy that he/she may not return to the program for 24 hours after beginning treatment.

- Please monitor your child for any unusual symptoms. If your child has been exposed to a highly contagious disease, please notify us. Coronavirus, strep throat, pinworm, viral infections, measles, mumps, chicken pox, fifth disease, scarlet fever, conjunctivitis, diarrhea, and impetigo are among those conditions characterized as "highly contagious".
- If a child has been exposed to a contagious disease, we will post notification to inform all parents of the possible exposure, symptoms to look for, as well as treatment. If your child has a contagious disease and there is a question as to when they should return to care, we may request a doctor's note stating it is safe for him or her to return to care.
- If your child develops any of these symptoms, you will be notified to come and pick up your child. You will then be required to make arrangements for your child to be picked up within one hour of the request. While waiting, your child will be provided with a safe, comfortable place to rest. The emergency pickup person must be on file for the release to occur.

Medication

EpiPen's and Rescue Inhalers are the only medication that will be administered in our program during before and after care. If your child uses an EpiPen or Inhaler one should be provided to the Site Director at the beginning of the program and should be clearly labeled with administration instructions. Any other medication needing to be administered should be arranged to be taken before or after the program or with the school nurse.

No over the counter medication will be dispersed/allowed throughout program.

Should your child have an allergy, or a medical condition please contact the Youth & Family Director prior to enrollment.

Family Participation & Interaction

The Bath Area Family YMCA staff and volunteers are not allowed to baby-sit or transport children outside of the YMCA program at any time without prior authorization from the CEO. The YMCA will take immediate disciplinary action toward staff and volunteers if a violation is discovered.

We ask that parents follow these guidelines when they interact with others when picking up and dropping off from the program.

- Use respectful language.
- Listen attentively.
- Talk or meet outside the classroom, away from children.
- Please understand that the children are our first concern, and the discussion may need to be postponed until coverage can be found.
- Avoid adult conversation in front of the children.

Essential Eligibility Criteria

Due to the nature of a group-based style of this program, the following list of eligibility criteria has been developed to create a safe environment for all the children in our care. We will do our best to make any reasonable accommodation. Please list any accommodations in the Enrollment Packet.

- Your child should be able to meet his/her personal needs (toileting, basic hygiene.)
- Your child should be able to move from place to place with the group without wandering off or running out of the program
 area.
- Your child should be able to follow basic directions from staff.
- Your child should be capable of positive interaction in our group-based environment.
- Your child should be able to talk with a staff person when assistance is needed.

While most children in our care respond to our *Program Discipline Procedures* (see below), some children exhibit continuing behaviors that threaten the safety and development of other children or have special needs necessitating the use of additional strategies.

We want to provide children with the support they need to be successful in our program. We encourage parents of all children with known disabilities (medical, educational/developmental, and behavioral) to:

- Share additional information with the YMCA. (Helpful information includes diagnoses, recommendations by physicians, and recommendations by child development experts and other professionals who have relationships with the child and family.)
- If a child has known or diagnosed behavioral issues, information MUST be shared by parents/guardians at enrollment.

Behavior Policy

The Bath Area Family YMCA believes that all children and staff have a right to a safe and healthy environment. All Y Care participants are expected to promote safety and respect. Staff will demonstrate and encourage children to learn and use conflict resolution skills.

If a child is demonstrating unacceptable behavior, the staff will fill out a Disciplinary Action Report. Behaviors that warrant a Disciplinary Action Report include, but are not limited to physical violence, inappropriate language, disrespect to staff or other children, dangerous behavior, bolting, or any behaviors which cause an unsafe environment for themselves, other children, or staff members. At any time if a child is unable to follow the basic rules and expectations outlined, parents or guardians may be contacted and required to pick up their child immediately from the program.

Program Discipline Procedures

Staff make every effort to ensure all participants have a positive experience. When a child does not follow the behavior guidelines, we will take the following steps.

- **1. REDIRECTION:** Staff will redirect the child to more appropriate behavior.
- **2. STOP & THINK:** If inappropriate behavior continues, the child will be reminded of behavior guidelines, rules, and will be asked to decide on action steps to correct his/her behavior. The parent/guardian may be notified.
- **3. REFERRAL**: If a child's behavior still does not meet expectations and is affecting others, he/she will face consequences that may include, but are not limited to; loss of privilege(s), a phone call home, parent conference, or other. The parent/guardian will be required to sign an acknowledgement of the action (Disciplinary Action Report, if warranted).
- **4. SUSPENSION/EXPULSION:** If inappropriate behavior continues, the participant may be suspended from the program for a matter of time that could include the remainder of the year. Incidents will be addressed on an individual basis and severity of the incident will be taken into account. Examples of unacceptable behavior:
 - Refusing to follow behavior guidelines or rules.
 - Using profanity, vulgarity, or obscenity.
 - Stealing or damaging property (personal, school, other participants, or YMCA property).
 - Refusal to participate in activities or cooperate with staff.
 - Leaving a program without permission.
 - Inappropriate sexual behaviors, gestures, or harassment.
 - Endangering the health and safety of children and/or staff.
 - Teasing, making fun, or bullying other children or staff.
 - Physical aggression/fighting. Physical violence or bullying toward another child or staff member will result in immediate suspension for a period of time determined by the Youth & Family Director.
 - A third offense will result in expulsion for the remainder of the school year.
 - **All suspensions and terminations are situational based.

Incident Reports

Y Care staff will fill out incident reports within a 24-hour period and notify parents/guardians at pick up. Incident reports do require parental/guardian signature.

Incident reports include, but are not limited to illnesses, stings, major cuts, head injuries, ice pack application injuries, major falls, infrequent bloody noses, and any additional concerning injury.

Incident reports are also used for any inappropriate behavior that does not fall under Disciplinary Action Reports. This includes, but not limited to swearing/profanity, inappropriate conduct, inappropriate bathroom behavior, and warranted behavior or actions. Parents will be notified prior to pick-up about any serious injuries.

Death of a child is required to be reported to DHHS.

Bully Prevention Policy

The Bath Area Family YMCA believes that all students have a right to a safe and healthy child care environment. We have an obligation to promote mutual respect, tolerance, and acceptance. The Bath Area Family YMCA will not tolerate behavior that infringes on the safety of any student. A student shall not intimidate, harass, or bully another student through words and actions. Such behavior includes direct physical contact, such as hitting or shoving; verbal assaults, such as teasing or name-calling; and social isolation or manipulation.

The Bath Area Family YMCA expects students, family members and staff to immediately report incidents of bullying to the site director or the Youth & Family Director. The staff who witness such acts take immediate steps to intervene when safe to do so. Each

complaint of bullying should be promptly investigated. This policy applies to students on school grounds, while traveling to and from the Y, on Bath Area Family YMCA sponsored activities, or at the Bath Area Family YMCA.

To ensure bullying does not occur in child care programs, The Bath Area Family YMCA will provide staff development training in bullying prevention and cultivate acceptance and understanding in all students and staff to build each school's capacity to maintain a safe and healthy learning environment.

Reporting Abuse

The Bath Area Family YMCA believes strongly that the safety of children in our care is our utmost responsibility. The YMCA is mandated, by state law, to report any suspected cases of Child abuse or neglect to the appropriate authorities for investigation. Essential to this responsibility must be that guardians believe in the State Policy which considers physical, sexual, or emotional abuse intolerable and that immediate action will be taken if such an allegation is made. The following procedures will be followed in the event of an allegation:

- The alleged victim will be our primary concern ensuring safety, protection, and comfort.
- The staff person, as soon as he or she is accused of abuse, will be suspended immediately with pay until the investigation is completed and a report issued.
- The accusation, suspicion or risk of harm will be reported immediately to the appropriate State authority.
- The Bath Area Family YMCA will cooperate fully with the investigation.
- The Bath Area Family YMCA will act responsibly when the investigation is over to ensure that all children in our program are protected.

In the case of an event observed by a staff member, or a direct report of a staff member, we will follow the following procedure:

- The staff member will report the observation/incident to the immediate supervisor/lead teacher.
- The supervisor/lead teacher will immediately report to the Director and will determine what action should be taken.
- If a report to the Department of Human Services is needed, the above procedure will immediately be put in place.
- If no further reporting is necessary, the Director will report back to the initiator the rationale for this decision.

Impairment Policy

If a Y Care staff has reason to believe that a family member or responsible adult is unable to safely transport a child, the teacher or administrator will address the concern and offer assistance in arranging for alternate transportation for the adult and child. Examples of possible reasons a responsible adult may be deemed "unable to transport a child safely" include:

- Odor of alcohol
- Slurring of speech
- Disturbance of gait
- Confusion
- Unusual behavior that may indicate impaired judgment or risk to safety.
- Voluntary sharing of alcohol consumption

If an observation is made which indicates the child may be at risk if the responsible adult operates a motor vehicle, the Teacher/Site Director or administrator will:

- Document the incident using objective observation skills and language (report to DHHS, if deemed necessary (see Reporting Abuse)
- Attempt to find alternative transportation (contacting other responsible parties listed as possible pick up on emergency paperwork)
- Contact the police if the responsible adult refuses the above option (give the police the name of the driver and passengers, vehicle information, and our concern that the child may be in danger.

Tuition Policies

At the time of enrollment, a yearly registration fee of \$35 is due. Registrations occurring between the third Friday of August until the second Friday of September may be delayed if there is a sudden influx of registrations in this time period.

- Weekly tuition is due the Wednesday (or 5 days) before the next week of care. In other words, tuition will be paid prior to the week of service.
- If tuition is two weeks late, a \$10.00 fee will be assessed.
- A *two-week written notice* is required if you withdraw your child from the program. Withdrawal from the program without this written paperwork will still require payment for the two-week tuition due.
- Please note that any reduction to enrollment is considered a partial withdrawal and does require a two-week written

- notice. This notice may be emailed, mailed, or dropped off at the YMCA office. Please do not give notice to site staff.
- Payment is to be made at the YMCA. If you cannot make your payment at the Bath YMCA, you may call in your payment by phone. We accept *Visa, Master Card, Amex & Discover credit cards or your bank's debit cards*. Checks by phone are available if we have your routing information on file at the YMCA.
- We reserve the right to terminate services when tuition is unpaid, or a parent is repeatedly late. If you know your payment is going to be late or if you are having financial hardships, please email Billing & Receivables Specialist.at jacqueline@bathymca.org. We are willing to work with you.
- The Bath Area Family YMCA provides a 5% discount on each child's fee when multiple children are enrolled for child care services from the same household.
- The Bath Area Family YMCA does not have the option of splitting or altering multiple family household payments. Payments and tuition for care will be taken as a single payment the week prior of the care provided. Child care payments will only be scheduled to draft from one payment method on file.
- In order to receive member rates, the household will need to sign up for family membership at the time of registration and remain a family member through the Bath Area Family YMCA throughout program length.

Termination Policy

If the YMCA finds that a child is not able to safely participate in our child care program or the child is unable to follow the basic expectations/essential eligibility criteria of our program, then the child will be released from Y Care. Incidents and behavior will be addressed on an individual basis and severity of the incident(s) will be taken into account. The YMCA reserves the right to terminate child care services at any time.

Please review these rules and expectations thoroughly with your child. Fees are non-refundable if a child is sent home for disciplinary reasons.

Program Surveys

Program surveys will be emailed out in February for family feedback. We encourage families to participate as this allows our organization to provide and improve quality throughout the program for all.

Student Assessments

Waivers will be emailed to families. Assessments will take place 3-4 weeks after enrollment and at the end of the school year. Site Directors will be conducting the assessment, which is through observation only. The assessment allows us to maintain higher certification with our Rising Stars accreditation and improve our quality of care. Waivers only need to be returned if the child is not participating in the assessment.

Registration

Payment, in full, is expected on the Wednesday prior to the week your child is attending care. We require a \$35 deposit to reserve a spot. *Deposits paid are non-refundable.*

Tax Form Request

Tax statements will be given out upon request via email from Kayla Royer at kayla@bathymca.org or Jackie Stahl at jacqueline@bathymca.org. The Bath Area Family YMCA does not preemptively send out child care tax forms.

Financial Aid

The YMCA is a charitable organization that provides financial assistance to any individual that is not able to afford services. Financial Aid applications are always available at the YMCA Welcome Center or on the Y website at www.bathymca.org. Forms will be reviewed, and you will be notified of your award.

Communication

Any questions or concerns regarding your child's Y Care experience should be directed to Kayla Royer, Youth & Family Director at kayla@bathymca.org. Any financial questions regarding billing, payments, and financial assistance should be directed to Jacqueline Stahl, Billing & Receivables Specialist at jacqueline@bathymca.org.